
 City of Deltona 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2013 

9:00 A.M. 

2
nd

 FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM 

2345 PROVIDENCE BOULEVARD 

DELTONA, FLORIDA  32725 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 

2. ROLL CALL: 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: December 5, 2013 
  

4. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

5. NEW BUSINESS/DEVELOPMENT REVIEW: 

 

A. ODP13-001 – Halifax Health Medical Offices Overall Development Plan. 

 

B. Vote to reaffirm January 31, 2008 DRC action to approve with condition lots 137 and 

138 for Lake Baton Estates Preliminary Plat (File# SD05-001). 

  

6. OTHER ISSUES: 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT: 
  

 NOTE:  If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Development Review 

Committee with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need a 

record of the proceedings, and for such purpose he/she may need to ensure that a verbatim record 

of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 

appeal is to be based (F.S. 286.0105).  

 

 Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should 

contact the City Clerk at least three (3) working days in advance of the meeting date and time at 

(386) 878-8100. 
 



 

 

CITY OF DELTONA, FLORIDA 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2013 
 

A Regular Meeting of the Deltona Development Review Committee was held on Thursday, 

December 5, in the 2
nd

 Floor Conference Room, 2345 Providence Boulevard, Deltona, Florida. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  
 

The meeting was called to order at 9:05 a.m. by Tom Pauls. 
 

2. DRC COMMITTEE: 
 

Chairman   Chris Bowley, AICP   Present 

Member    Gerald Chancellor, P.E.  Present 

Member   Leigh Grosvenor   Present 
 

Also present:  Planning & Development Services Planning Manager, Tom Pauls, AICP; Building 

and Enforcement Services Director, Dale Baker; Administrative Assistant II, Traci Houchin and 

Administrative Assistant II, Kathrine Kyp. 

 

Representative presents:  Dwight Durant P.E., Zev Cohen; John McDonald; Southern 

Development. 
 

3. Minutes: 
 

1. Meeting – October 3, 2013. 
 

Motion by Member Chancellor seconded by Chairman Bowley, to adopt the minutes of the 

Development Review Committee Meeting of October 3, 2013, as presented. 

 

Motion carried with members voting as follows: Member Grosvenor, for; Member 

Chancellor, for; and Chairman Bowley, for. 

 

4.  OLD BUSINESS: None 
 

5 NEW BUSINESS/DEVELOPMENT REVIEW:   
 

A. PP13-001 Extension of the Preliminary Plat for Lake Gleason Reserve.  

 

Planning and Development Services 
 

Chairman Bowley provided the Development Review Committee (DRC) with some background 

information for the Lake Gleason Reserve. He stated that the Florida State Legislature provided 

the Applicant with two 2-year extensions on the project and, as of today, they would like the DRC 

to grant an additional one (1) year extension. The applicant has provided their request in writing 

which would allow the DRC to approve and grant their request with conditions, if applicable, and 

as defined in Section 74-4 (j) of the Code. 

 

Ms. Grosvenor asked Chairman Bowley if there is a new secondary access or if it will remain the 



 

 

City of Deltona, Florida 

Development Review Committee Meeting 

December 5, 2013 

Page 2 of 3  

 

same and Chairman Bowley replied that they will address that issue with the Applicant. 

 

Chairman Bowley read Section 96-28 from the Code of Ordinances (Code) pertaining to cul-de-

sacs and said that if the DRC grants this extension, the Applicant will need to address the length of 

the road within the next year. The Applicant currently has a Preliminary Plat Development Order 

(DO) and if they wish to move forward with construction, it will not match the Final Plat and the 

Code. He stated a prior issue was related to FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) panels, 

but as of February 19, 2014, the 100-year new flood line will only impact three (3) or four (4) lots 

at their rear towards the lake and that issue has been addressed. 

 

Chairman Bowley stated the cul-de-sac discussions that he had with Ms. Grosvenor and others 

about the length of the road. There is a fire safety issue for the turn-around of oversized vehicles 

and the narrow entrance. Ms. Grosvenor pointed out that one of the issues, from a Fire Safety 

standpoint, is that there is only one way in and out. Chairman Bowley mentioned that if the 

Applicant could find a secondary access point, it would be sufficient; or they could look at 

redesign of the road. 

 

Mr. Pauls said the issue is that they are looking at a Preliminary Plat DO extension at this juncture 

and what the DRC is not taking into account is that, when the Final Plat Application is received, it 

would need to mirror the Preliminary Plat. The DRC could approve this request with conditions 

recognizing that the Final Plat would need to meet the City’s Code. 

 

Public Works – Engineering and Environmental 

 

Mr. Chancellor recalled the original request being approved by former Fire Chief, Chris Nabicht, 

based on two (2) cul-de-sacs serving as turn-around areas. Ms. Grosvenor stated the cul-de-sacs 

are not the issue; the real issue is if certain homes are cut off from emergency response. Mr. 

Chancellor’s concern is that the Applicant’s attorney would say that it was in the Code 5-6 years 

ago and the City approved it then. 

 

Chairman Bowley stated that there are two (2) issues; one (1) being the request for the twelve (12) 

month extension, which is why they’re here today, the other is the cul-de-sac. Mr. Pauls reiterated 

that they are intertwined. Chairman Bowley read a section from the Code regarding the due 

process to request twelve (12) month extensions through the DRC. 

 

After the Applicants joined the meeting, Chairman Bowley explained that the DRC has had some 

preliminary discussion and that they addressed the issues. He is prepared to vote for a twelve (12) 

month extension, which honors due process. The only conditions Mr. Bowley would assert is to 

address a length of road issue, which is in Chapter 96-28, fire safety issues for emergency access 

onto Baylor Dr., and that no work activity is to commence until the City has satisfaction on those 

issues. 

 

Mr. Durant spoke of the building industry being at a low point and their attempts on keeping the 

property viable. Mr. Durant explained what they did last year to proceed to start the subdivision. 

They found that fill availability is not the same as what existed five (5) years ago. Also, Mr. 



 

 

City of Deltona, Florida 

Development Review Committee Meeting 

December 5, 2013 

Page 3 of 3  

 

McDonald has been pursuing off-site property or an easement to provide as a secondary access; 

and there is none. An option could be to sprinkle the homes, but they do not have a cost estimate 

associated with it; or they could redesign the property. Mr. Durant reiterated that they were only 

asking for an extension to keep it marketable. Mr. Durant reiterated that he did not want any 

conditions with the extension.  

 

Chairman Bowley discussed the changes with the FIRMs panels and FEMA addressed that issue 

already. Mr. Durant understood that he would have to take care of the lots associated with it before 

proceeding with building. Chairman Bowley explained the extension for the 12-month DO without 

any conditions would allow them to build per the original DO was issued back in 2008. He 

explained that, since there was no Final Plat, they would have to Final Plat the project. The DRC 

would take the Final Plat through review and uphold that Final Plat to the Code. Thus, the Final 

Plat and Preliminary Plat would then be inconsistent with each other and conditions are needed to 

ensure consistency.  

 

Motion by Chairman Bowley, seconded by Member Chancellor, to approve PP13-001 for the 

extension of the Preliminary Plat DO for Lake Gleason Reserve, with the condition that no 

construction takes place on the property until the outstanding Code issues are addressed. 

 

Motion carried with members voting as follows: Member Grosvenor, for; Member 

Chancellor, for; and Chairman Bowley, for. 

 

6. OTHER ISSUES:  Chairman Bowley announced the departure of Ms. Traci Houchin and 

welcome her replacement, Ms. Kathrine Kyp. 

 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT:  

 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:40 a.m.  
 

 

______________________________  

ATTEST:      Chris Bowley, AICP, CHAIRMAN 
 

________________________________________   

Kathrine Kyp, RECORDING SECRETARY  

   



 

Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF DELTONA 

 Memorandum 
To: Development Review Committee  

 

From: Chris Bowley, AICP  

 

Date: December 9, 2013 

 

Re: Project No. ODP13-001:  Halifax Health Medical Offices Overall Development Plan 

(ODP); located at 120 Howland Boulevard.   

 

 

I. SUMMARY OF APPLICATION: 

 

APPLICANT: 

Halifax Health Medical Center 

Attn:  Mr. Michael Morgan 

P.O. Box 2830 

Daytona Beach, FL 32115-2830  

 

CONTACT: 

Zev Cohen & Associates, Inc. 

Attn:  Mr. Sam Hamilton, P.E. 

300 Interchange Boulevard 

Ormond Beach, FL 32174 

        

Request: The City of Deltona Planning and Development Services Department has received 

an application for approval of an Overall Development Plan for the above listed site.  

 

A. SITE INFORMATION: 

 

1. Tax Parcel No.:  9206-00-00-0120  

2. Property Addresses: 120 Howland Boulevard. 

3. Property Acreage:  ±12 Acres 

4.  Property Location:  Located at the northwest corner of the intersection 

of Howland Blvd and SR 415, across from the 

Wal-Mart entry road. 



Page 2 of 6 

5. Property Legal Description: 6 19 32 W 995.4 FT OF N 1/2 LYING N OF N 

R/W LINE OF HOWLAND BLVD EXC N 552.5 FT OF W 552.5 FT & 

EXC N 531.76 FT OF E 442.9 FT & EXC IRREG PARCEL MEAS 314.89 

FT ON N/L & 310 FT ON E/L PER D/C 6066 PG 2300 PER OR 6066 PGS 

2292-2293. 

 

 

Figure 1: Location map 



Page 3 of 6 

 

Figure 2: Aerial Photo 

 

 



Page 4 of 6 

 
Figure 3: Overall Development Plan 

 



Page 5 of 6 

B. Existing Entitlements: 

The subject property has a Commercial future land use designation and a Business 

Planned Unit Development (BPUD) zoning designation.  The zoning designation is consistent 

and compatible with the future land use classification and entitlements on adjoining and 

adjacent properties.  The proposed Overall Development Plan (ODP) is in keeping with recent 

amendments to the Master Development Plan (MDP), which updated the Development 

Agreement (DA) and preliminary plan for the site.  The ODP is the next step in the process to 

allow the applicant to move forward with final site plans, preliminary plat, and final plat for 

the site. 

 

C. Background Information 

In 2006, a rezoning to BPUD was started for the subject property during the peak of the 

Florida real estate boom.  The original BPUD was approved on June 2, 2008, by adoption 

of Ordinance No. 11-2008.  During this approval period, land values in the area had 

decreased significantly, such that the property remains vacant despite being located in a 

strategic area of the City. The approved “lifestyle center” type retail format, featuring 

larger retail space with numerous outparcels, had merit at one time. However, the ability 

to attract a large anchor tenant for the center has resulted in more fragmented 

development (collection of outparcels), mixed-use projects, or lesser intensive uses, such 

as office space, depending upon the location of the property.  Properties are more market 

sensitive than in years past that had a robust real estate market and typically need to be 

located along major arterial roadways for market viability. 

 

In February 2013, the applicant applied for an amendment to the BPUD Development 

Agreement to allow for a wider range of permitted uses, as well as conditional and 

prohibited uses, to create a more balanced development program. Other uses that are now 

part of the revised DA include office and service type activities, including medical uses. 

The amendment also removed the commercial anchor tenant component and updated the 

use allocation that is better suited to the new economic paradigm.  The City Commission 

approved this amendment on May 20, 2013; with the understanding that the BPUD would 

be updated when an appropriate development emerged. 

 

Halifax Hospital is an appropriate development for the site, as proposed, and is under 

contract to purchase the property.  Their concept, as reflected in the ODP submittal 

package, is for medical office uses with a commercial outparcel.  The proposed office and 

commercial uses will be consistent with the development pattern within the City and will 

provide an employment center within the region that will attract supporting land uses, 

such as commercial.  It will increase the City’s diversified land use program, the City’s 

non-residential tax base, and is strategically located at the intersection of two major 

arterial roadways – Howland Boulevard and SR 415. 

 



Page 6 of 6 

While the regional roadway network is being improved through the widening project of 

SR 415 and the proposed widening of Howland Boulevard from in front of this site to 

Courtland Boulevard, the area-wide central utility system is also being improved through 

the construction of the Eastern Water Reclamation Facility to provide needed commercial 

sewer to the region and, ultimately, to the project for the proposed development. 

 

Section 106-29 of the City’s Land Development Code (LDC) provides the criteria to 

review applications for ODPs within the City.  The applicant has submitted two versions 

of the ODP and received staff comments.  Each time, the applicant has either revised the 

plan per the comments or coordinated with staff to achieve an acceptable solution.  The 

attached cover letter and plan set reflects an ODP that is eligible for review and vote by 

the Development Review Committee, with the understanding that greater detail, exact 

location, and mitigation for site permitting will occur during the preliminary plat, final 

site plan, and final plat process.  As submitted, the applicant has met the criteria listed in 

Section 106-29 of the LDC to be able to move forward in the development review process 

towards project completion. 

 

D. Support Information 

 

Public Facilities  

 

a. Potable Water: to be supplied by Deltona Water  

b. Sanitary Sewer: to be supplied by Deltona Water 

c. Fire Protection: City Fire Station 62  

d.  Law Enforcement: Volusia County Sheriff’s Office (VCSO) 

e. Electricity: Florida Power and Light (FP&L) 

 

CONCLUSION/STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

In conclusion, staff opines that the Overall Development Plan for the Halifax Hospital Medical 

Offices is consistent with the approved Master Development Plan and Development Agreement 

for the Business Planned Unit Development approved for the site.  The ODP meets the criteria 

within Chapter 106-29 of the LDC, with minor revisions outstanding that can be provided on the 

preliminary plat, final site plan, or final plat, where appropriate.  Therefore, staff recommends 

that the Overall Development Plan for the Halifax Hospital Medical Offices be approved by the 

Development Review Committee. 

 



 

 

 

Related Documents for 

Lake Baton Estates 

Agenda Item 























D
R

A
W

IN
G

 F
IL

E
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
: 

D
R

A
F

T
E

D
 B

Y
: 

X
R

E
F

'S
: 

(L
C

 6
2
)

SHEET

OF

SEAL

NOT VALID WITHOUT EMBOSSED SEAL

(E
B

 4
5
1
6
)

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
: 

IS
S

U
E

 D
A

T
E

:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 N
O

: 

FILE LOCATION

REVISIONS:

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

5
5

 S
E

T
O

N
 T

R
A

IL
  

O
R

M
O

N
D

 B
E

A
C

H
, 
F

L
  
3
2
1
7
6

(9
0

4
) 

4
9
1

-5
4
3

6
  

F
A

X
 (

9
0

4
) 

2
6
1
-7

8
7
9

A
M

E
L
IA

 I
S

L
A

N
D

(3
8

6
) 

6
7
7

-2
4
8

2
  

F
A

X
 (

3
8

6
) 

6
7
7
-2

5
0
5

(9
0

4
) 

7
9
7

-1
6
1

0
  

F
A

X
 (

9
0

4
) 

7
9
7
-4

1
5
9

O
R

M
O

N
D

 B
E

A
C

H

S
T

. 
A

U
G

U
S

T
IN

E

B
Y

 

C1

E
G

S

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 D

E
L
T

O
N

A
V

O
L

U
S

IA
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 

F
L
O

R
ID

A

15-2

1

0
2
1
4
2

- C
R

B
/M

L
R

M
D

D








	12-19-13 DRC AGENDA ONLY-1.pdf
	02142LOT-ADDITION
	02142LOT-ADDITION.dwg
	Layout1


	SBizhub C3613112613400
	SBizhub C3613112613410
	Storm As Built - ZCA - Sheet 5
	Storm As Built - ZCA.dwg
	Layout1 (5)



